
BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS 
 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
 

   Meeting: Wednesday, 14th December, 2022 
      at 2.00 pm. (Committee Room No. 4) 
 

A G E N D A 
 
PART ONE 
 

1.   Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members.   
 

 

2.   Urgent Items 
 
To deal with any items which the Chair considers to be of an urgent 
nature.  
 

 

3.   Delegations 
 
To receive notice from Members who may wish to move any 
delegated matter non-delegated and which will be decided by a 
majority of Members present and voting at the meeting. 
 

 

4.   Admission of Public and Press 
 
To consider whether the public and press should be excluded from 
the meeting during consideration of any of the items on the agenda. 
 

 

5.   Declarations of Interest 
 
To receive declarations by Members and/or co-optees of interests in 
respect of items on this Agenda.  
 
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of 
Conduct, they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests or other registrable interests which have not already been 
declared in the Council’s Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal 
offence not to declare a disclosable pecuniary interest either in the 
Register or at the meeting). 
 
Members may however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such 
disclosable pecuniary interests which they have already declared in 
the Register,  as well as any other registrable or other interests.   
 

 

6.   Minutes 
 
To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 9th November, 2022. 
 
 

5 - 10 



 

 
7.   Public Participation 

 
Any member of the public who wishes to ask a question, make 
representations or present a deputation or petition at this meeting 
should apply to do so by no later than 5pm two working days before 
the meeting.  Information on how make an application can be 
obtained by viewing the Council’s website www.barrowbc.go.uk or by 
contacting the Democratic Services Team at 
jwhuck@barrowbc.gov.uk or by telephone on 07825206525. 
 
(1) Questions and Representations 

To receive any questions or representations which have been 
received from members of the public. 

 
(2) Deputations and Petitions 

To receive any deputations or petitions which have been 
received from members of the public. 

 
 

 

FOR DECISION  
 

 

(D) 8.   Barrow Levelling Up Fund - Project Update   
 
To provide an update on progress on the Barrow LUF Programme. 
 

11 - 34 

(D) 9.   Capital Programme Update   
 
To consider the revisions from the in-year project review. 
 

35 - 44 

 
PART TWO  
 

 

(D) 10.   Options For Future Stray Dog Provision   
 
To consider the proposals for Future Stray Dog Provision. 
 

NOT FOR PUBLICATION BY VIRTUE OF PARAGRAPHS 2 & 4 OF 
PART ONE OF SCHEDULE 12A OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 

1972 AND ACCESS TO INFORMATION (VARIATION) ORDER 2006 

 

45 - 54 

 
NOTE  (D) – Delegated 
  (R) – For Referral to Council 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.barrowbc.go.uk/
mailto:jwhuck@barrowbc.gov.uk


 

Membership of Committee 
 
Councillors Brook (Chairman) 

L. Roberts (Vice-Chair) 
Barlow 
Biggins 
Burley 
Hamilton 
W. McClure 
Maddox 
Morgan 
Pemberton 
Shirley 
Wall 
 

 
For queries regarding this agenda, please contact: 
 

 Jon Huck 
Democratic and Electoral Services Manager 
01229 876312 
jwhuck@barrowbc.gov.uk 

 
Published: Tuesday, 6 December 2022 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
 

Meeting: Wednesday 9th November 2022  
at 2.00 pm. (Committee Room No. 4) 
 

PRESENT:- Councillors Brook (Chairman), Barlow, Biggins, Hamilton (Minute Nos. 67 
to 77 only), Maddox, Morgan, Pemberton, Roberts and Wall. 
 
Officers Present:- David Parr (Interim Head of Paid Services), Sue Roberts (Director 
of Resources), Debbie Storr (Head of Legal and Governance), David Haughian 
(Capital Programme Manager), Helen Houston (Head of Regeneration and Planning 
Policy) (Minute Nos. 67 to 73 only) and Jon Huck (Democratic and Electoral Services 
Manager). 
 
67 – Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members 
 
Apologies for absence had been received from Councillors Burley and Shirley. 
 
68 – The Local Government Act 1972 as amended by the Local Government 

(Access to Information) Act 1985 and Access to Information (Variation) 
Order 2006  

 
Discussion arising hereon it was:-  
 
RESOLVED:- That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the 
public and press be excluded from the meeting for parts of the following items of 
business on the grounds that they involved the likely disclosure of exempt information 
as defined in Paragraph 3 (Minute No. 77) and Paragraphs 3 and 5 (Minute No. 78) of 
Part One of Schedule 12A of the said Act. 
 
69 – Declarations of Interest 
 
Councillor Hamilton declared an Other Registrable Interest in Agenda Item 12 – Cost 
of Living Support.  He was the Chair of the Community Hub and a Member of Cumbria 
County Council. 
 
70 – Minutes 
 
The Minutes of the meeting held on 12th October, 2022 were agreed as a correct 
record. 
 
71 – Public Participation 
 
RESOLVED:- To note that no questions, representations, deputations or petitions had 
been received in respect of the meeting. 
 
72 – UK Shared Prosperity Fund – Year 1 Projects 
 
The Head of Regeneration and Planning Policy presented the list of projects that would 
be supported by UK Shared Prosperity Funding in Year 1. The projects had been 

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



independently assessed for strategic fit, deliverability and alignment with the 
interventions and associated outcomes outlined in Barrow Borough UKSPF 
Investment Plan had been endorsed by this Committee in July.  The funding must be 
drawn down by 31st March 2023, subject to approval and programme management 
arrangements being finalised by Government. 
 
The UK Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF) had been launched on 13 April 2022 and 
£2,477,528 had been allocated to the Council, with around £8.3m collectively for 
Barrow, Eden and South Lakeland District Councils. 
 
The Barrow UKSPF Investment Plan had been considered by the Westmorland and 
Furness Shadow Cabinet on 22 July 2022. On 27 July 2022, this Committee had given 
approval to submit the Investment Plan to Government which set out how the funding 
would be spent.  The Fund had three investment priorities around which investment 
would be based: Community and Place; Supporting Local Business; and People and 
Skills. 
 
The Council were awaiting approval from the Government of the UKSPF Investment 
Plan. If approved, the Council would be required to enter into a grant funding 
agreement with the Government, the content and implications of which were unknown 
at this stage. 
 
A Table showing the shortlisted projects had been included in the report. Feedback 
would be sought on these projects, and those shortlisted for South Lakeland and Eden, 
from the UKSPF Local Partnership Group on 2nd November who through their 
expertise in their professional field would confirm strategic fit and deliverability ratifying 
the independent assessment.  All Barrow projects had met assessment criteria and it 
envisaged would be supported by the LPG. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Hamilton and seconded by Councillor Barlow, and 
 
RESOLVED:- To note and endorse the projects to be funded by UKSPF for Barrow 
Borough in Year 1. 
 
73 – Youth Investment Fund – Expression of Interest for Lakeland House 
 
The Capital Programme Manager reported that Drop Zone had moved into Lakeland 
House, which was owned by the Council.  Lakeland House provided Drop Zone with 
space to undertake their youth work activity. 
 
Drop Zone supported young people across the Borough and carried out a wide range 
of activities that were considered by the Committee. 
 
The Lakeland House Building, although in a central location within Barrow Town 
Centre with good transport links, had been originally designed for office use and 
therefore was not fit for purpose to undertake their youth activity work.  Council officers 
had held discussions with Drop Zone and discussed options to enable the building to 
be adapted to enable a wider range of young people activities and training to be 
delivered. 
 

Page 6

Agenda Item 6



To undertake the required improvements within Lakeland House, it was estimated that 
in the region of £300 - £400k capital funding would be required to deliver improvement 
works to the building.  That would then need to be supplemented by additional revenue 
funding in order that Drop Zone could expand their offer to young people. 
 
The Council had taken steps to secure £7.5k of funding through Shared Prosperity 
Fund, which was being match funded by Drop Zone, to appoint an architect to produce 
interior designs for the proposed capital improvements to Lakeland House. 
 
To secure funding for the capital works and the additional revenue funding, it was 
proposed that the Council submit an expression of interest to the Youth Investment 
Fund, funded by the UK Government.  
 
The first stage to secure funding from the Youth Investment Fund was to submit an 
expression of interest.  It was proposed that the Council would be the applicant for the 
proposed funding.  The next steps for the project were considered. 
 
Once the Council submitted their expression of interest, it would take between 3-6 
months to obtain the necessary approvals from Government to be able to submit a 
detailed application.  It would be the decision of Westmorland and Furness Council to 
submit the detailed application and include Capital Funding within the Westmorland 
and Furness Council Capital programme. 
 
Subject to a successful funding bid, it was likely that works on Lakeland House would 
commence in late 2023.  All Youth Investment funding must be defrayed by March 
2025. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Hamilton and seconded by Councillor Barlow, and 
 
RESOLVED:- To endorse the submission of an expression of interest for Youth 
Investment Fund to support the upgrade of Lakeland House and to increase youth 
support activities across the Borough. 
 
74 – Workforce Strategy Statement 2022-2023 
 
The Director of Resources reported that the Council’s Workforce Strategy was due for 
revision in 2022. 
 
The Workforce Strategy sets out the Council’s plans, ambitions, and commitment to 
employees across the Council and provided potential employees with an awareness 
of the culture of the organisation. 
 
The strategy would usually be prepared along the same time period as the Council 
Plan however given the timeframe for Local Government Reorganisation, a Strategy 
Statement had been prepared to bridge the period leading up to vesting day. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Roberts and seconded by Councillor Barlow, and 
 
RESOLVED:- To approve the Workforce Strategy Statement 2022-2023. 
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



75 – Finance and Delegation Update 
 
The Director of Resources updated the Committee on finance and delegation matters 
and an addendum to the Council’s Pay Policy in relation to the waste management 
service. 
 
The report sought confirmation of delegations required for the effective operation of 
the waste management service. 
 
She asked that that recommendation 1 in the reported be deleted. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Roberts and seconded by Councillor Barlow, and 
 
RESOLVED:-  
 
1. To delegate the setting of fees and charges associated with the Walney Road 

garage to the Head of Operational Services in consultation with the Director of 
Resources; 

 
2. To delegate the spot sale of recyclate materials to the Head of Operational 

Services; and 
 
3. To approve the Pay Policy addendum that incorporates the waste management 

service depot staff as set out in paragraph 3.17 of the report with the exception 
of deleting the wording “excluding the garage”. 

 
76 – Cost of Living Support 
 
The Director of Resources reported that the Council had identified £310,000 from the 
Welfare Reserve to support a Housing First project that could no longer proceed. 
 
She proposed the use of £310,000 as Cost of Living Support and proposed a 
distribution based upon the needs identified by the Community Prosperity Partnership. 
 
A member paid tribute to the volunteers who worked at the Community Hub. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Hamilton and seconded by Councillor Maddox, and 
 
RESOLVED:-  
 

1. To agree to remove the Housing First project from the capital programme; 
 

2. To agree the allocation of £310,000 from the Welfare Reserve towards Cost of 
Living Support as: 

 

  a. £100,000 to support the warm spots project; 
  b. £100,000 split into large direct grants to support established organisations 

providing food, fuel and emergency support into the community; 
  c. £110,000 as a small grants programme to fund third sector organisations 

supporting the community through the winter. 
 

Page 8

Agenda Item 6



3.  To delegate confirmation of the lead organisations for item 2a and recipients of 
item 2b to the Director of Resources in consultation with the Chair of the 
Executive Committee, based upon the recommendations of the Community 
Prosperity Partnership; 

 

4. To delegate authority to award the grants for items 2a and 2b to the Director of 
Resources in consultation with the Chair of the Executive Committee; 

 

5. To instruct the Director of Resources to establish a small grants programme for 
item 2c; 

 

6. To delegate authority to award the small grants to the Director of Resources in 
consultation with a working group of 3 Members (politically balanced), drawn 
from the Executive Committee; and 

 

7.  To delegate authority to the Director of Resources to vire between the schemes 
in consultation with the Chair of the Executive Committee to ensure that funding 
was distributed efficiently. 

 
Local Government Act 1972 - Excluded Items  
 
It was moved by Councillor Roberts and seconded by Councillor Barlow that the 
meeting moved into Part Two, and  
 
RESOLVED:- That the items to be taken in Part Two of the Agenda be dealt with 
following the exclusion of the press and the public. 
 
77 – Leasehold Report 
 

The Committee received a report from the Director of Resources on a leasehold 
property. 
 

It was moved by Councillor Hamilton and seconded by Councillor Barlow, and 
 

RESOLVED:-  To agree the resolutions as set out in the Part Two report. 
 
78 – Contract Update 
 

The Committee received a Contract update from the Director of Resources. 
 

It was moved by Councillor Maddox and seconded by Councillor Wall, and 
 

RESOLVED:-  To agree that the resolutions as set out in the Part Two report. 
 
The meeting closed at 3.00 pm. 

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Executive Committee 

14 December 2022 

Barrow Levelling Up Fund – Project Update 

 
 

Report from:   Director of People and Place 

Report Author:  Capital Programme Manager  

Wards:    (All Wards); 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1 This report provides Members with an update on progress on the Barrow LUF 

Programme and sets out next steps over the coming months. 
 

2.0  Recommendation  
 

2.1 It is recommended that Executive Committee note the progress within the paper 

and endorse the proposed next steps. 
 

2.2 Agree the procurement and award of contracts for enabling works and survey 

works for the Levelling Up Fund Project, Town Centre Community Hub and 

Market Square Event Space be delegated to the Director of People and Place. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals 

 

3.1 Project Background  

 

In March 2021, Government sought applications from local authorities who could 

benefit from Levelling Up funding. All local authorities were categorised into 

priority 1, 2 or 3, with 1 being the highest priority. Barrow Borough Council was 

the only Priority 1 authority within Cumbria. The Council submitted their 

application to Government on the 18th June 2021.   

 

3.2 Barrow’s bid focussed around a package of projects aimed at addressing the 

long-term economic strategy for the town. These projects were: 

 Improving the Market Hall, including the integration of a food and beverage 

offer and wider leisure offer.  

 Improving the frontage and access to the Forum Theatre 

Page 11

Agenda Item 8



 Enhancing access to these cultural assets/attractions and connecting them to 
the rest of the town through better transport infrastructure and improvements 
to the public realm.  

 

3.3 These projects represent a high impact scheme that will transform the character 
and attractiveness of the town centre and improve accessibility to this area from 
all modes of transport, providing the catalyst to increase footfall and deliver 
lasting change. The proposal responds to the government’s request to deliver 
impactful projects that regenerate the town centre, provide investment in cultural 
facilities and upgrade local transport infrastructure. Barrow Borough Council 
have taken the lead on the delivery on works to the Market, Forum and public 
realm improvements on Dalton Road and Portland Walk. Cumbria County 
Council are leading on the public realm/highway elements on Duke Street. 
 

3.4 Progress Update  
 

In June 2022, BBC appointed a Capital Programme Manager, to oversee the 
delivery of the Council’s Capital Programme and be responsible for the delivery 
of the LUF Programme. Task and Finish groups were established to drive 
forward the design, communications, land and legal and commercial 
workstreams. Progress is reported and decisions are escalated to the Council’s 
Corporate Programme board on a monthly basis.  
 

3.5 Since June 2022, a number of surveys have been procured to better understand 
the condition of the existing assets and inform the scheme cost estimates and 
designs to be developed. This includes topographical, utility detection, 
refurbishment and demolition, mechanical and electrical, structural, bat and bird 
and measured building surveys, including the creation of a 3D model for the site. 
The results of these surveys have been assessed by the Council’s Principal 
designer and will be used to inform forthcoming refurbishment works to the asset 
and inform the scheme cost estimate. Where practical and not impacting on the 
Forum/Markets operations, opportunities will be pursued to undertake 
refurbishment works prior to the delivery of the main scheme. This will help to de-
risk the delivery of the main works contract and provide the Council with further 
cost certainty. 
 

3.6 The demolition of one of the redundant units at the rear of the market hall has 
been completed. Further demolition of redundant properties on Dalton Road (No 
77-79, 81 and 83) and the Ginnel between Dalton Road and Portland Walk within 
the LUF scheme boundary will commence in early 2023 to create a new green 
dwelling space and will enhance links to the Market from the town centre.  
 

3.7 Following a competitive procurement exercise, Buttress Architects, have been 
appointed as the Principal Designer for the scheme. They are supported by 
Landscape Architects, Open Architects and multi-disciplinary consultancy firm 
WSP. Buttress Architects are currently assessing all the survey information and 
updating the concept design of the scheme. Buttress Architects will produce the 
detailed scheme designs and produce a package of information to allow a 
Principal Contractor to be appointed.  

 

Page 12

Agenda Item 8



3.8 A detailed review of the scheme cost estimate has been undertaken to account 
for recent inflationary price increases. The Project team are now updating the 
scheme layout as appropriate to reflect these increases, whilst ensuring that the 
original project outcomes and outputs are successfully achieved. Monthly 
scheme cost reviews are undertaken by the design team and Council officers. 

 
3.9 Alongside the formal design process, officers are preparing options for the 

operational and commercial model for the upgraded market hall. 
 
3.10 The Cumbria County Council led Community Hubs Town Deal funded project 

includes the delivery of a Town Centre Hub in the Forum. Cumbria County 
Council have formally requested the Town Centre Hub is delivered by Barrow 
Borough Council as the asset owner. To maximise efficiencies on the project and 
to ensure consistency of design approach, the Town Centre Community Hub and 
the Market Square event space (both funded through Town Deal) and Changing 
Spaces facility (funded through DHLUC) are being delivered through the same 
design contract as the LUF Project. There is an established project working 
group for both the Town Centre Community Hub and the Place Project, which will 
engage with the Project Design team.  

 
3.11 Following the signing of a formal collaboration agreement between Cumbria 

County Council and Barrow Borough Council in March 2022, Cumbria County 
Council have awarded a Design Commission to WSP to undertake preliminary 
designs (to RIBA stage 3) for the Duke Street public realm and transport 
improvement elements of the LUF project.  The consistency in designers 
between both commissions will significantly reduce the risk of non-
communication between projects and help deliver a public realm project that is 
co-ordinated with the wider LUF vision. 

 
3.12 Preliminary designs and detailed cost plans for the Duke Street works are 

expected to be available in early 2023. As with the wider LUF project, inflationary 
pressures will need to be accounted for in the scope of work delivered. At this 
stage it is expected the scheme will be designed with the ability to flex the scope 
to the budget. 

 
3.13 Indicative Project Programme  
 

An indicative project programme for the LUF project is set out below. The project 
must be completed by March 2025 to meet the terms of the Memorandum of 
Understanding with DHLUC. 

 

Activity Indicative timescales Status 

 

LUF funding application 

submitted 

June 2021 Completed 

LUF funding agreement 

signed 

Feb 2022 Completed 

Page 13

Agenda Item 8



Funding agreement with 

CCC to deliver the 

Duke St Works 

March 2022 Completed 

Survey works procured May 2022 Completed 

Demolition of vacant 

market unit 

July-Sept 2022 Completed 

Surveys completed Aug/Sept 2022 Completed 

Principal Designer for the 

Market appointed 

Aug 2022 Completed 

First Public consultation Nov/Dec 2022 In progress 

RIBA 3 design completed 

and planning 

application 

submitted 

Spring 2023 In progress 

Demolition of remaining 

redundant 

buildings within 

LUF scheme 

Early 2023 In progress 

Contractor appointed and 

works commence on site 

Summer 2023 Not yet started 

Works completed March 2025 Not yet started 

 

3.14 Next steps 

The key next steps up until the end of March 2023 has been set out below: 

 Produce a consultation feedback report following the November 2022 public 
consultation, which will be published on the Council’s website. 

 A further consultation will be held in early 2023 to consult on the proposed RIBA 
3 designs prior to submitting a formal planning application. 

 The Council will seek to appoint a contractor to demolish Dalton Road properties 
(No 77-79, 81 and 83) and the Ginnel in early 2023. The creation of the green 
dwell space will be subject to a separate planning application. 

 Progress LUF project designs, alongside the proposed town centre community 
hub and market square events space, up to RIBA 3 and prepare the associated 
documentation for the planning application and listed building consent 
application. 

 Engage with Cumbria Highways and the Local Committee in relation to the public 
realm enhancements on Dalton Road, Portland Walk and Duke Street and 
prepare all traffic regulation orders and other highway consents. 

 Barrow Council’s agents will prepare publications to commence soft marketing 
testing with prospective market stall, food and beverage and 
leisure/entertainment tenants for the upgraded Market.  

Page 14

Agenda Item 8



 Further intrusive survey works are being scoped, including ground investigations 
within the public realm and structural surveys to influence the façade and roof 
design. Early enabling refurbishment work activities will be procured and 
delivered where practical. 

 
4.0 Consultation  

 
4.1 A monthly progress meeting has been established with all existing traders in the 

market hall and surrounding retail units. Officers have been developing a 
strategy to enable tenants to continue to operate successfully during the market 
upgrade. All tenants who will occupy a stall within the upgraded market hall are 
being transitioned onto a single standard lease agreement, which will be fit for 
purpose for the upgraded market. A formal application process will follow in the 
coming months to allow existing tenants to register their interest in becoming 
tenants within the upgraded facilities. 

 
4.2 In November and December 2022, a formal public consultation commenced with 

key stakeholders and the public on the updated concept designs. This includes 
workshops with stakeholder groups, drop in events in the town centre and a 
dedicated webpage and consultation brochures and materials. All feedback will 
be recorded in a consultation feedback report, which will be published on the 
Council’s website. 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 The only viable alternative is not to proceed with the project as described within 
the project business case.  Officers can approach the funders, DHLUC, with 
amendments to the project scope, but the outcome of such a request is 
uncertain. 

 
6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 Priority 2: Place: Creating a vibrant, safe & welcoming place where people want  
to live. 

 
7.0 Implications  

7.1 Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 The Levelling Up Fund projects are included in the Capital Programme and this 
is mainly funded from external grant along with the Council’s own capital 
resources.  There are no additional financial or resource implications from the 
recommendation. 
 

7.2 Legal  

7.2.1 There are no legal issues to raise in this report which is to provide members with 
an update on progress on the project. Procurement will be undertaken in 
accordance with the Councils contract procedural rules, and legal advice will be 
obtained on contracts as appropriate prior to their completion. 

 

Page 15

Agenda Item 8



7.3 Local Government Reorganisation 
 

The project will be completed in March 2025 and the assets will become part of 
the property and highway portfolio of Westmorland and Furness Council. 
 

7.4   Equality and Diversity 
 

7.4.1 The project aims to enhance accessibility to the upgraded market hall and the 
Council will be engaging with a wide range of stakeholders to influence the 
scheme design process. An Equality Impact Assessment forms a key element of 
the Principal Designers Brief.  

 

7.5 Risk 
 

7.5.1 The project team have held internal risk workshops to understand the key issues 
and risks associated with the delivery of the LUF project. The risks have been 
RAG rated and weighted accordingly by the project team. The risk register is 
reviewed monthly by the project team and reported to Corporate Programme 
Board. The key risks have been summarised below: 

 

Risk name Short 
description 

Mitigation Pre 
mitigation 
RAG 
rating 

Current 
Post 
Mitigation 
RAG 
rating 

Risk 
owner 

Assets Issues 
associated 
with the 
existing assets 
not identified 
during the 
design phase 

Barrow 
Borough 
Council have 
undertaken 
extensive 
surveys on the 
assets to 
identify 
potential 
issues that 
need to be 
addressed 
before or 
during the build 
phase. 

  Capital 
Programme 
Manager, 
BBC 

Surveys Feedback from 
building 
surveys results 
in scheme 
buildability/cost 
concerns 

Early delivery 
of scheme 
surveys and 
analysis of 
results. These 
are then fed 
into the 
scheme cost 
plan and 
updated 
monthly. 

  Capital 
Programme 
Manager, 
BBC 

Page 16

Agenda Item 8



Project 
cash flow 

The Council is 
currently in 
discussion with 
DHLUC to 
amend the 
scheme cash 
flow in line with 
the project 
programme 

Meetings with 
DHLUC have 
taken place 
and reported 
via quarterly 
monitoring 
returns. 
Regular 
dialogue with 
DHLUC.  

  Capital 
Programme 
Manager, 
BBC 

Scheme 
costs 

Scheme costs 
increase as a 
result of 
inflation and 
lack of 
availability of 
materials 

The scheme 
cost plan is 
updated on a 
monthly basis 
by the lead 
QS. Scheme 
funding is 
focussed on 
highest priority 
areas of 
intervention to 
maximise 
project 
outcomes. 

  Capital 
Programme 
Manager, 
BBC 

Programme Project 
programme 
cannot be 
delivered by 
March 2025. 

The scheme 
programme is 
monitored on a 
monthly basis 
by the Client 
and Principal 
Designer. Any 
slippages are 
reported to 
DHLUC.  

  Capital 
Programme 
Manager, 
BBC 

 
Contact Officers  

David Haughian, Capital Programme Manager  

 

Background Documents Available 
 

Name of Background document Where is it available 

Public consultation document  www.barrowbc.gov.uk/regen 

 

Page 17

Agenda Item 8

http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/regen


This page is intentionally left blank



Barrow Town Centre Regeneration Scheme
Levelling Up Fund Investment 

Public Consultation:
Friday 2nd - Friday 23rd December 2022

Barrow Town Centre Regeneration Scheme
Levelling Up Fund Investment 

Public Consultation:
Friday 2nd - Friday 23rd December 2022

Page 19

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



We want to hear your views to help shape a major 
regeneration project in Barrow’s town centre. As 
part of the design process, we want your feedback 
on proposals to transform the Barrow Market 
building and its wider exterior public space 
into a new destination with shopping, food and 
experiences at its heart.

Markets have grown in popularity around the globe. They are becoming ever more 
relevant and valued through all they o� er, from authentic street food and vibrant 
local produce to community spaces and shared experiences.

Barrow Market is to enjoy a rejuvenation. You can help guide the design of a bright 
new market, which will be a fantastic place to spend time for those young and old. 
There will be natural light and activities throughout the day. Barrow Market will 
combine the best of the new with our rich history to discover great produce, food 
and drink and much more.  

The scheme will re-imagine Barrow’s Market Hall, creating a destination for people 
of all ages with local and independent businesses, a food and drink hall and areas 
for children and families. The project includes a new exterior and shared entrance 
for the Market Hall and neighbouring entertainment venue The Forum, a new 
community hub, as well as improvements to Duke Street to create better transport 
connections. There will also be a pocket park and space for outdoor events.

Please share your views on the proposals during the consultation, which runs from 
Friday December 2 until Friday December 23. There will be the chance to attend 
drop-in sessions and � ll out a survey online or in person. We will also be holding 
events with organisations who represent various groups of residents in our 
community.    

2

Why are we Talking to You?

Page 20

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



Consultation with the public 
and other stakeholders 
shaped a successful bid for 
huge investment from the 
Government’s Levelling Up Fund 
(LUF) in June 2021.

In Autumn 2021, the Government 
announced that a once-in-a-
generation £16 million pound 
award from the LUF had been 
secured by Barrow Borough 
Council. With match funding of 
£1.5 million from Barrow Borough 
Council itself, the scheme will 
bene� t from a £17.5 million 
overall investment

The business case put forward to 
Government consisted of three 
key elements:

• Improvements to the outdoor 
spaces (public realm) and 
accessibility in Duke Street 
and the creation of a high-
quality entrance connecting 
The Forum and Barrow 
Market Hall.   

• Revitalising Barrow Market 
with a vibrant food hall to 
o� er more food and drink 
experiences, more family 
leisure facilities, and a high-
quality shopping area to 
showcase local traders, 
makers, and producers at the 
heart of the scheme while 
also establishing a new town 
centre community hub within 
The Forum.

The Story so Far.....

In 2021, Barrow Borough Council developed 
an ambitious business case to inject vitality 
back into the heart of Barrow’s town centre 
with proposals to create a major indoor 
attraction and gateway destination through 
signi� cant transformation to existing 
buildings, streets and spaces.

• The creation of a pocket 
park and events space at 
the Portland Walk entrance 
to Barrow Market Hall 
and improved pedestrian 
connectivity to Dalton Road.

In July 2022, the empty building at 
56 Portland Walk was demolished 
to pave the way for the scheme. 

Buttress Architects are the lead 
architects for the project, working 
alongside OPEN designers and 
engineers WSP.  

3

key elements:

Page 21

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



Barrow is Cumbria’s second 
largest urban area after 
Carlisle.

Barrow plays an important 
role in meeting the shopping, 
services, leisure, and public 
administration needs in South 
Cumbria. Barrow Town Centre, 
like many town centres across the 
UK, was impacted by the Covid 19 
pandemic and this accelerated the 
decline in footfall with competition 
pressure from online shopping. 
With a high vacancy rate and 
reduced footfall, there is an urgent 
need to diversify the town centre 
o� er.

The awarding of £16 million from 
the Government’s Levelling Up 
Fund, with £1.5 million match 
funding from Barrow Borough 
Council,  brings a £17.5 million 
pound overall investment. This will 
allow the creation of an attractive 
Duke Street gateway destination 

to greatly improve the experience 
for residents, business owners 
and visitors. The exciting town 
centre venue will o� er reimagined 
leisure and shopping experiences 
and improvements to outdoor 
spaces, transport infrastructure, 
connectivity, and public spaces.

This once-in-a-generation level 
of inward investment will help 
contribute to rebuilding a vibrant 
town centre, increasing footfall, 
boosting the local economy, 
encouraging people to spend 
an increased amount of time in 
the area and enhancing cultural 
heritage.  This is not a scheme 
happening in isolation, Barrow 
Town Centre Regeneration 
Scheme comes at a time of great  
investment for Barrow. The town 
centre scheme incorporates 
elements of the £25 million pound 
#BrilliantBarrow Town Deal,  with 
the creation of a new community 
hub within The Forum and 

transformed outdoor community 
event spaces.

Portland Walk and Dalton Road 
are owned by the private sector 
and Barrow Borough Council 
does not determine either 
rent or business rates for the 
properties.  However, Barrow 
Borough Council is working with 
Cumbria Constabulary to enhance 
CCTV provision and is seeking to 
secure Shared Prosperity Fund 
investment from the Government 
to improve Portland Walk.

The Council is also working 
with landlords and partners to 
reactivate the town centre overall. 
Dalton Road bene� ted from a 
successful temporary public realm 
scheme this year. The Welcome 
Back Fund provided pergolas so 
businesses could o� er covered 
outdoor eating spaces.

Examples of the #BrilliantBarrow Town Deal projects

4

Background, Issues and Opportunities

Page 22

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



5

Our Objectives

We have set the following objectives for our Barrow Town Centre Regeneration Scheme. 
We would like to know whether you agree with our objectives:

Transform the role and 
perception of Barrow

through an enhanced 
leisure, arts, and culture 
o� er creating new 
opportunities for people 
to spend time in the town 
centre.

Diversify our offer 

by creating a 
contemporary, attractive 
and exciting indoor 
destination to encourage 
footfall and spend.

Establish a gateway 

to the heart of the town 
centre which creates an 
exceptional sense of arrival 
and enhances linkages 
between civic, culture and 
retail uses.

centre.

Objectives

Page 23

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



You Said We are Listening

Improve the appearance of the 
town centre and attract more 
people. Have culture and leisure at 
the heart. The town centre needs a 
focal point/hub. Have a city vibe.

The scheme proposes an attractive new entrance 
to the Duke Street venue, which will be a vibrant 
destination and focal point for local people and 
visitors to entice people back to the town centre. 

Transform and modernise Barrow 
Market. Make more of the Market 
asset.   

The transformation of Barrow Market is central to 
the proposals, and it showcases a modern shopping 
experience and food hall. Elements of the Market will 
be visible from Duke Street.  

Have more places to eat and drink. 
Create an evening destination.

A vibrant food hall and multiple spaces for eating and 
drinking are key to the project. The venue will be a 
great daytime and evening destination for Barrow.    

Support small businesses and 
encourage start-up businesses. 
Listen to the views of traders.  

Supporting independent businesses and producers, 
and encouraging incubator businesses, is at the 
heart of the scheme.  We are liaising with traders 
throughout the process.   

Have a clearly defi ned route 
through Barrow Market from 
Market Square (the outdoor 
Market) to Barrow Town Hall and 
the town centre.

The proposals are for seamless accessibility and 
clear routes from the Duke Street and Portland Walk 
Market entrances and through the exciting features of 
the indoor venue, to the outside facilities and into the 
wider town centre. 

Have more town centre greenery 
and areas for people to relax and 
spend time. 

We have a lack of town centre green spaces, so 
improving greenery and biodiversity is planned 
through the introduction of a pocket park, plants and 
trees and spaces for relaxation.

Be more inclusive. Have more for 
young people, have more play 
facilities in the town centre.

The scheme proposes family activity areas within the 
transformed Barrow Market, and we are engaging 
with many groups in our community about the needs 
of all, including children and young people.  

Bring buses back into the town 
centre. They need to be more 
prominent with modern bus stop 
facilities.

The scheme would bring buses back into  the heart of 
the town centre for better transport connectivity and 
with modern facilities.   

6

In 2021, we consulted you on our business case proposals. We have taken 
your points on board.

Page 24

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



Proposed spatial layout plan for the new facility

7

Our Latest Designs

We want to revitalise Barrow town centre with an attractive and 
quality focal point destination for residents and  visitors to enjoy. It 
will increase footfall and boost the local economy.

We would like your views and input into our latest designs. Your 
insight as residents, business owners, visitors and other stakeholders 
will be invaluable to helping ensure we design the right scheme for 
Barrow.

Key

Frontage onto High Street

Upgraded Customer Entrances

Food and Beverage Hall

Market Trader Space

The Forum 

Community Hub Facility 

Back of house facilities

Storage and future expansion space 

Retained entertainment and 
conferencing facilities in The Forum

Page 25

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



8

Duke Street Entrance

The main entrances to The 
Forum and Barrow Market on 
Duke Street, will be transformed 
to create an attractive and 
welcoming arrival. Internally, there 
will be an improved connection 
between The Forum and Barrow 
Market to establish one exciting 
destination. These improvements 
allow us to close the mall entrance 
and utilise this space for storage 
and future expansion space.

The bright and inviting entrance 
will allow natural light to 
illuminate the building and new 

facilities within it.  The shop units 
will be removed to allow sunlight 
to penetrate into the Market Hall 
and allow visitors to Duke Street 
to see into the market and see the 
hive of activity.

The design will compliment and 
respect the adjacent landmark of 
the Grade II* Listed Barrow Town 
Hall. 

The revitalised Barrow Market 
Hall will be showcased from Duke 
Street for the � rst time.

Page 26

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



9

Duke Street Public Realm (Open Spaces)

Duke Street’s open spaces will 
be enhanced with greenery and 
street furniture. There will be areas 
for people to sit and relax outside 
the venue. 

The plans include bringing buses 
back along Duke Street, into the 
heart of the town Centre, with 
modern bus stop facilities at the 
front of the Duke Street building.        

The designs for Duke Street are still 
in development. The Council will 
undertake further consultation on 
this element of the scheme in due 
course. 

Page 27

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



10

The Interior - The Forum

A modern bar area with open plan 
seating space will allow visitors 
to view the magni� cent Grade II* 
Listed Barrow Town Hall and the 
enhanced street space outside. 
A new, glazed entrance will also 
allow visitors to take in more of 
the grandeur of our Barrow Town 
Hall and Duke Street heritage. 

The interior entrance space uni� es 
the transformed Barrow Market 
with new food hall attraction, the 
cultural vibe of The Forum theatre 

and the new inspiring Town 
Centre Community Hub area.   
The community hub is an intrinsic 
part of the project and will be very 
much part of the Market Hall.

It will act as a service that 
connects The Forum and the 
Market Hall and will work with 
existing services within the Town 
Centre, to maximise cultural and 
enterprise opportunities for all.

Page 28

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



11

The Interior - Market Hall

Our traditional Barrow Market 
Hall is currently hidden from its 
surroundings. 

However, when it is completely 
transformed It will be visible from 
Duke Street and stand proud 
within the heart of the town 
centre retail circuit.  Showcased 
from the enhanced Duke Street, 
it will help to increase footfall and 
support our independent traders 
and producers who are at the 
heart of our town centre. 

Our revitalised Market Hall will 
o� er something for everyone. 

A new, vibrant food hall is planned 
along with a play area for young 
children.  There will be greater 
� exiblity in the market so that 
di� erent events can be held. It will 
also be a wet-weather destination 
for visitors to the town.

New lighting will be provided 
and  make the interior bright and 
cheery. 

Page 29

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



12

The Portland Walk Market Entrance 

The proposals are to bring 
attractive and � exible community 
events spaces, outdoor trading 
opportunities and places to spend 
time in the heart of Barrow Town 
Centre.

A new pocket park in Stephen 
Street will be an impressive asset 
for the community, linking the 
route  from Barrow Market to 
Dalton Road, enhancing the retail 
circuit. This fresh open space 
could include seating, canopies 
with lighting, an outdoor events 
area and a place for food and retail 
opportunities.

Market Square at Portland 
Walk will bene� t from greenery 
improvements,  and become a 
welcoming and lively outdoor 
environment for the community 
events calendar and outdoor 
trade. It will create an attractive 
entrance for visitors into the 
improved Market Hall.

Page 30

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



13

Next Steps

Your views on the design options will be used to inform the 
plans as they are developed for approvals and consents. 
Following the consultation, we will publish a feedback report. 
This will summarise the public’s views on the designs and how 
these will be used to inform project development.

Following the consultation, we will:

• Analyse your responses and summarise them in a short report.

• Undertake further design work on the project and seek consents from statutory bodies.

• Prepare planning applications for submission to the Local Planning Authorities.

• Prepare variations to Tra�  c Regulation Orders.

• Continue to work with partners to co-ordinate the range of work planned in the local area.

Page 31

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



14

Timeline

2022 2023

December 2, 2022
Consultation starts 

December 16, 2022
Consultation period ends

January 2023 
Feedback report 
published

Spring 2023
Further public 
consultation prior 
to the submission 
of a formal planning 
application and 
associated consents

Summer 2023
First Major Works Due to 
Commence

Page 32

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



15

How can I � nd out more ?
The consultation runs from Friday December 2nd to Friday December 23rd, 2022 You 
can respond to the consultation in a number of ways:

Online ;

You can have your say at Barrowbc.gov.uk/regen where there is a digital survey to complete 
that accompanies this document. 

Attend the public consultation events ;

Saturday December 3
Barrow Market  11am-2pm 

Monday December 5
Tesco Extra 12-2pm

Saturday December 10
Dock Museum 11am - 2pm

Wednesday December 14                                                                                                                                  
Barrow Market 11am - 2pm  

Printed copies of the consultation survey can be completed at these events. 

If you have a query regarding the consultation please email regen@barrowbc.gov.uk

Wednesday December 14                                                                                                                                  

Page 33

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Executive Committee 

14 December 2022 

Capital Programme Update 

 
 

Report from:   Capital Programme Manager and Director of Resources  

Report Author:  Director of Resources  

Wards:    (All Wards); 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1 The Capital Programme 2022-2026 was presented to the Executive Committee 

on the 12 October 2022. 

 

1.2 This report contains the revisions from the in-year project review carried out by 

the Capital Programme Manager in consultation with the Director of Resources. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

2.1 It is recommended that the Executive Committee:-  

 

1) Approve the Capital Programme reprofiling; 

2) Approve the use of £150,000 for preparatory works in the Market 

Hall ahead of the Levelling Up Fund project funded from the 

Renewals Reserve; 

3) Approve the use of £150,000 for Piel Island Facility Improvements 

funded from usable capital receipts; and 

4) Note the other revisions made to the Capital Programme; and  

5) Note the expenditure in 2022-2023. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 The budgeted Capital Programme was presented to the Executive Committee on 

the 12 October 2022 as: 

 

 2022-2023  £10,499,415 

 2023-2024  £25,979,043 

 2024-2025  £18,054,084 

 2025-2026  £663,804 

 

Page 35

Agenda Item 9



3.2 The revisions have been made to the programme to produce an estimated spend 

for 2022-2023 with externally funded projects reprofiled, new projects added, and 

other changes. 

 

3.3 Reprofiling 

 

3.3.1 The following projects have been reprofiled and the associated funding has 

followed to later years, where necessary formal funding changes will be 

requested: 

 

 Town Deal – Housing Market Renewal 

 Town Deal - Marina Village  

 North Central Renewal Area - Greengate Street   

 Leisure Centre 

 Brownfield Land Release - Marina Village 

 Heritage Action Zone 

 

3.4 New Projects 

 

3.4.1 For the UK Shared Prosperity Fund projects, an announcement is expected at 

the end of December and those capital projects will be added into the 

programme in quarter 3. 

 

3.4.2 The following projects have been added during quarter 2 and are externally 

funded: 

 

 Levelling Up Parks – Argyle Place 

 Changing Places 

 

3.4.3 The following projects have also been added and are funded from Council 

resources: 

 

 Market Hall £150,000 for preparatory works ahead of the Levelling Up Fund 

project; this is funded from the Renewals Reserve. 

 Piel Island Facility Improvements £150,000; this is funded from usable capital 

receipts. 

 

3.5 Other Changes  

 

3.5.1 The expected spend of the Disabled Facilities Grants has been reduced to reflect 

the expected outturn of £750k; the outturn for 2021-2022 was £499k.  The 

unspent funding is ringfenced for Disabled Facilities Grants and carried forward 

within reserves. 

 

3.5.2 The Housing First project is removed from the Capital Programme and the 

funding repurposed as the Cost of Living Fund. 

 

Page 36

Agenda Item 9



3.6 Revised Programme 

 

3.6.1 The revised Capital Programme is attached at Appendix 1 as: 

 

 2022-2023  £9,611,017 

 2023-2024  £26,866,105 

 2024-2025  £17,961,920 

 2025-2026  £663,804 

 

3.6.2 The revisions are shown below: 

 

£000 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 Total 

Programme 12 October 2022 10,499 25,979 18,054 664 55,196 

Town Deal reprofiling (276) 276 - - 0 

Greengate Street reprofiling (130) 130 - - 0 

Leisure Centre reprofiling (13) 105 (92) - 0 

Brownfield Land reprofiling (90) 90 - - 0 

Heritage Action Zone reprofiling (50) 50 - - 0 

New – Argyle Place 66 - - - 66 

New – Changing Spaces 5 95 - - 100 

New – Market Hall 150 - - - 150 

New – Piel Island Facility 10 140 - - 150 

Reduced – DFGs (250) - - - (250) 

Removed - Housing First (310) - - - (310) 

Revised programme 9,611 26,865 17,962 664 55,102 

 

£000 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 Total 

Financing 12 October 2022 10,499 25,979 18,054 664 55,196 

Town Deal (251) 251 - - 0 

Brownfield Land Release (90) 90 - - 0 

Heritage Action Zone (28) 28 - - 0 

New - LUP Parks Fund 66 - - - 66 

New - Changing Spaces 5 95 - - 100 

Disabled Facility Grants: DFG (250) - - - (250) 

General Fund Reserves (195) 127 (92) - (160) 

Usable Capital Receipts (145) 295 - - 150 

Revised financing 9,611 26,865 17,962 664 55,102 

 

3.7 Expenditure 

 

3.7.1 Expenditure against the revised Capital Programme is reported at Appendix 2 

along with notes indicating the current position or stage of the project. 

 

3.7.2 The external Town Deal projects have not initiated claims until quarter 3 and can 

be set aside when comparing quarter 2 expenditure to budget: 

 

Page 37

Agenda Item 9



 The Capital Programme less external the Town Deal projects is £7m 

 Quarter 2 expenditure £1.6m 

 

3.7.3 Capital expenditure is uneven across the year and to provide further assurance 

of the programme being spent, the latest position is also included: 

 

 Expenditure at 30 November 2022 £3.2m 

 Commitments at 30 November 2022 £1.3m 

 

4.0 Consultation  

4.1 Consultation is not relevant to the recommendations. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 There are no alternatives to present, all capital resources are programmed. 

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 The Capital Programme contains projects that drive forward objectives within the 

People, Place and Prosperity objectives of the Council Plan. 

 

7.0 Implications  

7.1 Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 The financial implications are contained in the body of the report; the Capital 

Programme is set against the available resources. 

 

7.2 Legal  

7.2.1 There are no specific legal implications from the recommendations. 

 

7.3 Local Government Reorganisation 

7.3.1 The Capital Programme shall be consolidated into the Westmorland and Furness 

 Council Capital Programme along with the resources that fund and finance the 

 expenditure. 

 

7.3.2 Any tenders and contracts at the thresholds set out in the Section 24 Direction 

 and General Consent shall be reported to the Shadow Westmorland and 

 Furness Cabinet as set out in the Section 24 Direction and General Consent. 

 

7.4   Equality and Diversity 
  

7.4.1 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  No – there are no individuals 
directly impacted by the recommendations. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 38

Agenda Item 9



Risk 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Budgets are 

insufficient to deliver 

individual projects. 

Project shortfall or 

requirement for 

projects to be 

descoped.  

Robust pre-tender estimates are 

sought, cost control and 

programme management. 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Inflationary price 

increases and lack of 

availability of materials 

impacts on project 

delivery. 

Project shortfall or 

projects need to be 

descoped 

Regular cost reviews of projects, 

engagement with supply chain, 

utilisation of locally sourced and 

easily accessible products and 

services where practical.  

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Projects cannot be 

delivered within 

available timeframe 

expected by external 

funders 

Projects cannot be 

completed and/or 

funders clawback 

unspent funds. 

Project programmes regularly 

reassessed for being practical and 

deliverable. Options to reduce 

project timeframes and maximise 

outcomes explored early in the 

project lifecycle.  

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Unplanned capital 

expenditure. 

Unfunded expenditure 

and borrowing 

required. 

Proactive budget management, 

reprofiling and effective accountable 

body monitoring. 

 

Contact Officers  

Capital Programme Manager, dhaughian@barrowbc.gov.uk  

Director of Resources, directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk  

 

Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1  Capital Programme 2022-2026 

2 Capital Programme Q2 Spend 

 

 

 

Page 39

Agenda Item 9

mailto:dhaughian@barrowbc.gov.uk
mailto:directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



   Appendix 1 

 

CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2022-2026

Capital Scheme/Project 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26

£ £ £ £

HRA planned maintenance 2,161,260          2,161,260          2,161,260          -                      

Public Housing 2,161,260          2,161,260          2,161,260          -                      

Disabled facilities grants 750,000             1,000,000          1,000,000          -                      

Housing First -                      -                      -                      -                      

Private Housing 750,000             1,000,000          1,000,000          -                      

Town Deal - Housing Market Renewal 150,000             2,717,539          1,500,169          75,604               

North Central  Renewal - Greengate Street 20,000               130,000             -                      -                      

Private Sector Housing -                      -                      93,600               -                      

Housing Market Renewal 170,000             2,847,539          1,593,769          75,604               

Cemetery 120,000             -                      -                      -                      

Play Areas 35,000               -                      -                      -                      

Leisure Centre 25,000               225,000             567,000             -                      

Market Hall 150,000             -                      -                      -                      

Changing Spaces 5,000                 95,000               -                      -                      

Levelling Up Parks Fund - Argyle Place 66,500               -                      -                      -                      

Public Buildings 401,500             320,000             567,000             -                      

MRF Depot 22,297               -                      -                      -                      

Waste Fleet and Equipment 510,200             -                      -                      -                      

IT Development 117,500             -                      -                      -                      

Environmental & Regulatory 649,997             -                      -                      -                      

Town Deal - Marina Village 50,000               710,055             186,667             -                      

Brownfield Land Release - Marina Village 50,000               1,469,081          -                      -                      

Industrial & Commercial Property 100,000             2,179,136          186,667             -                      

Heritage Action Zone 362,332             107,775             -                      -                      

Accelerated Town Fund 55,495               -                      -                      -                      

Low Carbon Barrow 1,096,504          -                      -                      -                      

Levelling Up Fund - Barrow Market & Public Realm 1,214,256          7,315,000          6,638,598          -                      

Levelling Up Fund - Accessibility -                      2,185,000          -                      17,529               

Town Deal - Learning Quarter 2,107,766          6,693,107          851,762             -                      

Town Deal - Hubs & Earnse Bay 218,270             1,415,898          1,972,710          9,056                 

Town Deal - Place Development 65,000               207,500             355,667             561,615             

Town Deal - Cycling & Walking 210,168             293,890             2,634,487          -                      

Piel Island Facility Improvements 10,000               140,000             -                      -                      

Regeneration & Public Realm 5,339,791          18,358,170       12,453,224       588,200             

Contingency 38,469               -                      -                      -                      

Total of Programme 9,611,017          26,866,105       17,961,920       663,804             

Capital Financing 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26

£ £ £ £

Disabled Facilities Grant 750,000             1,000,000          1,000,000          -                      

European Structural and Investment Fund 493,577             -                      -                      -                      

Town Deal 2,772,659          11,520,845       7,215,982          649,417             

Heritage Action Zone 203,100             62,665               -                      -                      

Cumbria Local Enterprise Partnership 602,927             -                      -                      -                      

Levelling Up Fund 1,214,256          9,500,000          5,078,229          -                      

Brownfield Land Release Fund 50,000               1,469,081          -                      -                      

Residual Government Grants 55,495               -                      -                      -                      

Changing Places 5,000                 95,000               -                      -                      

Levelling up Parks Fund 66,500               -                      -                      -                      

HRA Major Repairs Reserve 2,161,260          2,161,260          2,161,260          -                      

GF Earmarked Reserves 760,932             270,110             171,655             -                      

Usable Capital Receipts 475,311             787,144             2,334,794          14,387               

Total of Financing 9,611,017          26,866,105       17,961,920       663,804             

Page 41

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2

Capital Scheme/Project
Expenditure - Quarter 2 2022-2023

Project/Scheme  Budget
£ 

 Actual
£ Notes

HRA planned maintenance 2,161,260     860,690        Progressing on target with a number of projects that fall under the Housing 
investment plan.

Disabled facilities grants 750,000        238,682        Demand led grants programme.

Town Deal - Housing Market Renewal 150,000        -                
Principal designer progressing designs for Rawlinson st properties. Public 
consultation anticipated in January 2023. Barrow Island housing design works 
currently out to tender, with expected award date in January 2023.

North Central  Renewal - Greengate 
Street 20,000          -                Principal Designer appointed and designs being progressed. Residents expected to 

be consulted in December 2022.

Cemetery 120,000        1,500            Project scope being reviewed and expected to go out to competitve tender in early 
2023.

Play Areas 35,000          -                Add to Town Deal - Housing Market Renewal.

Leisure Centre 25,000          -                High priority maintenance/improvement works are being procured and delivered as 
part of the Borough Council's Strategic Asset Management Plan

Market Hall 150,000        -                Essential repairs to the Market Hall asset that fall out the scope of the Barrow LUF 
Project

Changing Spaces 5,000            -                
Design work for the proposed changing spaces facility within the leisure centre to 
be progressed in Q4 2022/23. Works at the leisure centre and market hall expected 
to be completed in 2023/24.

Levelling Up Parks Fund - Argyle Place 66,500          -                Designer appointed and consulation programmed for December 2023. Works 
expected to be delivered in Feb/March 2023.

MRF Depot 22,297          -                Equipment purchased as part of Waste Service project.
Waste Fleet and Equipment 510,200        -                Purchased as part of Waste Service project.
IT Development 117,500        84,101          Waste Service specialised IT systems.
Town Deal - Marina Village 50,000          28,769          Surveys currently being progressed and land negotiations being progressed.

Brownfield Land Release - Marina Village 50,000          -                Principal designer for the junction improvement appointed and design works being 
progressed.

Heritage Action Zone 362,332        22,585          Grants programme and events programme for 22/23 financial year being 
progressed.

Accelerated Town Fund 55,495          -                Final element of the project delivered in 22/23.

P
age 43

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 2



Appendix 2

Capital Scheme/Project
Expenditure - Quarter 2 2022-2023

Project/Scheme  Budget
£ 

 Actual
£ Notes

Low Carbon Barrow 1,096,504     258,249        
Solar panel installation on housing stock being progressed, alongside grants 
programme, Piel island facilities block and measures to reduce carbon footprint of 
public buildings.

Levelling Up Fund - Barrow Market & 
Public Realm 1,214,256     93,886          Principal Designer appointed, design work and site surveys being progressed. First 

public consultation to commence 2.12.22.

Town Deal - Learning Quarter 2,107,766     -                Barrow BC are the accountable body for the TD Programme. Planning permission 
secured. First grant claim recieved in October 2022.

Town Deal - Hubs & Earnse Bay 218,270        -                
Barrow BC are the accountable body for the TD Programme. Earnse Bay Hub 
planning application submitted. Town Centre Hub to be delivered by Barrow BC 
through MOU with CCC. First grant claim recieved in October 2022.

Town Deal - Place Development 65,000          1,750            
Place officer appointed by Barrow BC. Principal Designer appointed for Market 
Square and Amphitheatre event space. Ampitheatre works expected to commence 
in Q4 22/23.

Town Deal - Cycling & Walking 210,168        -                
Barrow BC are the accountable body for the TD Programme. Principal designer 
appointed and design works being progressed. First grant claim recieved in 
October 2022.

Piel Island Facility Improvements 10,000          -                Design work proposed for upgraded toilet/shower facilities on Piel Island to 
commence in Q4 2022/23.

Contingency 38,469          -                Held for Levelling Up Fund.
Total of Programme 9,611,017     1,590,212     

P
age 44

A
genda Item

 9
A

ppendix 2



Document is Restricted

Page 45

Agenda Item 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 2,4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 53

Agenda Item 10
Appendix 1By virtue of paragraph(s) 2,4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Minutes
	8 Barrow Levelling Up Fund - Project Update
	Barrow Town Centre Regeneration Scheme 10MB

	9 Capital Programme Update
	Enc. 1 for Capital Programme Update
	Enc. 2 for Capital Programme Update

	10 Options For Future Stray Dog Provision
	Enc. 1 for Options For Future Stray Dog Provision


